
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for 
Infrastructure & Development Strategy 
 

Thursday, 18 July 2024 at 2.00 pm 

Room 3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link. 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 

The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 

will become effective at the end of the working day on 26 July 2024 unless called in by 
that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Martin Reeves 

Chief Executive 
July 2024 

 
Committee Officer: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 15 August 2024 

 
 
 

 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

https://oxon.cc/DDCMIDS18072024


Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

See guidance below. 
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 

days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 

  
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 

and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response. 
  
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 

the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time. 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 
person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 

  
Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the 

meeting.  Requests to speak should be sent 
to committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk . 
  

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 

written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before 
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 
 

4. Oxford Workplace Parking Levy Scheme Development Contract 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 
Cabinet Member: Infrastructure and Development Strategy 

Forward Plan Ref: 2024/197 
Contact: Stewart Wilson, Place Planning Team Leader (Central) 
(Stewart.Wilson@oxfordshire.gov.uk)  

 
Report by Director of Environment and Highways (CMDIDS4)  

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:  

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Stewart.Wilson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

 
a) Approve the procurement of technical transport consultancy support 

required for the Workplace Parking Levy project.  
 

b) Delegate the award of the contract award to the Director of Economy and 
Place 
 

c) Authorise officers to progress the development of the Workplace Parking 
Levy project including the undertaking of the required future public 

consultation.  
 
EXEMPT ITEM 

In the event that any Member or Officer wishes to discuss the information set out in the 
annex to Agenda Item 5, the Committee will be invited to resolve to exclude the public 

for the consideration of the annex by passing a resolution in relation in the following 

terms: 
 
"that the public be excluded during the consideration of the annex since it is likely that if 

they were present during that discussion there would be a disclosure of "exempt" 

information as described in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972 
and specified below the item in the Agenda". 
 

NOTE: The report does not contain exempt information and is available to the public 
 
THE ANNEX TO THE ITEM NAMED HAS NOT BEEN MADE PUBLIC AND SHOULD 

BE REGARDED AS ‘CONFIDENTIAL’ BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS ENTITLED TO 
RECEIVE THEM. 

 

5. Oxford Zero Emission Zone Pilot Scheme - Income Sharing 
Agreement (Pages 7 - 38) 

 
Cabinet Member: Infrastructure and Development Strategy 

Forward Plan Ref: 2024/149 
Contact: Bryan Evans, Senior Transport Planner 

(Bryan.Evans@oxfordshire.gov.uk) 
 
Report by Corporate Director for Environment and Place (CMDIDS4) 

 

The information in this case is exempt in that it falls within the following prescribed 

categories: 
 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information) 
 

and since it is considered that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

The annexes containing exempt information under the above paragraph is attached. 
 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:   

  

mailto:Bryan.Evans@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 4  
 

 

a) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Environment and Place in 
consultation with the Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer and 

Section 151 Officer to negotiate, complete, sign, seal and implement the 
Income Sharing Agreement with Oxford City Council for the Oxford Zero 

Emission Zone Pilot Scheme.  

 



Page 2  
 

 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
 

General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 



Page 3  
 

 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 



 

   

 

Divisions Affected – All in Oxford City, Berinsfield and Garsington, 
Wheatley, North Hinksey, Kennington and Radley 

 

 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

18 JULY 2024 
 

WORKPLACE PARKING LEVY SCHEME DEVELOPMENT 
CONTRACT 

 

Report by Director of Environment and Highways 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to 

a) Approve the procurement of technical transport consultancy support 
required for the Workplace Parking Levy project.   

b) Delegate the award of the contract award to the Director of Economy 
and Place.   

c) Authorise officers to progress the development of the Workplace 

Parking Levy project including the undertaking of the required future 

public consultation. 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Oxfordshire County Council (the Council) wishes to procure a contract to 
provide the required technical consultancy support on the Workplace Parking 

Levy (WPL) project.  This will cover work required to develop a preferred 
scheme (boundary, charges, exemptions etc.) and an investment plan, and 
which will involve developing a comprehensive business case and appraisal of 

the schemes’ costs, benefits, and potential impacts.   
 

2. As the whole-life value of the contract is expected to exceed £500,000 in 
revenue, this is a Key Decision and requires approval from the Cabinet Member 
for Infrastructure & Development Strategy. 

 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



   

 

   

 

Introduction 

 
3. The introduction of a Workplace Parking Levy has formed part of the Council’s 

transport strategy for Oxford since 2015 and is one of several actions within the 
Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan, adopted by the Council in 2022.   

 
4. A Workplace Parking Levy is an annual charge paid to the local transport 

authority by employers (not employees, although the employer can pass the 

charge on) for workplace parking places they provide. A Workplace Parking 
Levy would discourage car commuting, with employers reducing the amount of 

car parking provided and employees transferring to public transport and/or 
active travel.  It would also provide a substantial, predictable, locally controlled 
source of transport funding (which also levers in further private sector and 

government funding) to support delivery of transport initiatives including actions 
within the Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan.   

 
5. The powers to introduce a Workplace Parking Levy are contained in the 

Transport Act 2000. Although a Workplace Parking Levy scheme is developed, 

consulted on, and implemented by the local transport authority, it must be 
approved by the Secretary of State for Transport.  By law, net proceeds from a 

Workplace Parking Levy are only available for the purpose of directly or 
indirectly facilitating achievement of local transport policies i.e. the Local 
Transport and Connectivity Plan and Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan. 

 
6. In promoting a scheme, the enabling legislation requires an application to the 

Secretary of State for Transport that includes submission of a legal scheme 
order confirming the scheme details (boundary, charges, discounts, exemptions 
etc.) and includes 5- and 10-year plans for how any net revenue will be spent 

(an investment plan).  

 

7. Following precedent set by Nottingham Council, a detailed business case is also 
required outlining the justification for the scheme and its costs, benefits, and 
potential impacts.  Initial discussions with the Department for Transport (DfT) 

have already taken place (in March 2024) to confirm the likely scope and 
contents of such a business case.  

 
8. The Council’s Constitution mandates that contracts with a value more than 

£500,000 in revenue are subject to the Key Decision process. Therefore, the 

Cabinet Member for Infrastructure & Development Strategy is requested to 
approve the spend set out in this Report and to delegate authority to the Director 

of Economy and Place to award the contract.  
 

Key Dates 

 

9. The indicative timeline for WPL scheme development and implementation is as 
follows: 

 Spring 2024 – Early engagement; 

 Autumn 2024 to Spring 2025 – Stakeholder engagement; 

Page 2



   

 

   

 

 Summer 2025 – Public consultation; 

 Winter 2026 – Cabinet decision on WPL scheme;  

 Winter 2026 – Submit WPL application to DfT for approval to implement; 

and 

 If approved, implementation from 2027.  

 

10. The above timelines allow time for the Council to talk to employers, residents 

and other stakeholders to shape and build support for the scheme and allows 

sufficient time for Department for Transport approval, which could take a 

minimum of 6 months. 

 

Consultancy Support Scope 

 
11. The Council requires the services of a technical consultant(s) to support 

development of the WPL up to and including submission of an application to the 
DfT for approval.  The services required cover a range of different tasks, as 
summarised here: 

 

 Data collection and analysis; 

 Stakeholder engagement and public consultation; 

 Business case development including an appraisal of the WPL’s costs, 
benefits and potential impacts; 

 Options for the WPL back office and enforcement, and staff and other 
requirements and costs for the preferred option; 

 Scheme definition (WPL boundary, charges, exemptions and discounts); 

 Financial forecasting; 

 Development of the investment plan; and 

 Business case project management.  

Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
12. The introduction of a WPL is fully compliant with a range of Council policies, 

primarily the Strategic Plan and the Local Transport & Connectivity Plan and 

Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan. 
 

13. Priority 5 of the Council’s strategic priorities is to “invest in an inclusive, 
integrated and sustainable transport network”.  Funding raised by a WPL will 
mean the Council is able to invest in public transport and active travel, for 

example, supporting this and other strategic priorities including tackling the 
climate emergency and inequalities. 

 

Page 3

bookmark://_Toc165641561/
bookmark://_Toc165641568/


   

 

   

 

Financial Implications 

 
14. The forward funding of the WPL revenue budget was agreed by the Council in 

February 2024.  It includes £2.488m for scheme development and approval.  A 
further £0.871m has been agreed for implementation.  These costs are 

expected to be paid back using future income raised by the WPL. 
 

15. Funding for the contract (expected to be c. £530,000) will be met by the revenue 

budget allocated to the project. 
 

16. The Council intends to tender a single contract covering the work.  Approval to 
award the contract will be subject to the Council’s usual processes, which 
includes financial risk review of successful bidders as well as sign-off by senior 

procurement and financial officers. 
 

Comments checked by: 
 

Rob Finlayson, Strategic Finance Business Partner, 

rob.finlayson@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Legal Implications 

 
17. The Council will comply with the relevant procurement legislation and follow its 

own Contract Procedure Rules in the procurement of the contract. 
 

18. Provided the procurement is conducted in accordance with the Council’s  

Contract Procedure Rules there are no direct legal implications in the proposed 

procurement. Officers across services are engaged with the procurement 

process to ensure such compliance. 

   
Comments checked by: 

 
Jennifer Crouch, Principal Solicitor (Environment Team) 

jennifer.crouch@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Procurement Implications 
 

19. To procure services of a suitable consultant for the Workplace Parking Levy 

scheme development commission, the Council will use the ESPO Framework 

(Eastern Shires Purchasing Framework). The ESPO Framework to be used is 

664-21 Consultancy Services, Lot 5 (covering highways, traffic and transport).  

ESPO is a public sector owned professional buying organisation, with the Lot 

5 Framework including several major UK transport consultancies. 
 

20. The Council already has experience using the ESPO 664-21 Framework, which 

has provided an efficient route to market with a wide reach enabling the Council 

to demonstrate value for money. 

Page 4



   

 

   

 

 

Comments checked by: Amy Withers, Category Manager (Infrastructure). 

Amy.Withers@Oxfordshire.gov.uk  

 

Staff Implications 

 
21. A project team is being set up to manage the contract and deliver the services 

covered by it.  This includes a dedicated WPL project manager and technical 
lead, with other staff within the Economy & Place directorate providing support.  

Staff costs are to be covered by the WPL revenue budget that was agreed by 
the Council in February 2024. 
  

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 

22. Potential equality and inclusion considerations relate to the introduction of a 
WPL, rather than the service being tendered.  This includes potential additional 
costs to commute to work by car, should employers choose to pass on the 

charge to their employees.  Previous proposals for a WPL in Oxford assumed 
disabled parking places used for commuting would not be liable to the charge.  

Funding generated by the WPL will also be reinvested to improve transport 
connectivity to places of work, including from areas of deprivation in the east 
and south-east of Oxford.  

 
23. As part of the business case required to support approval of a WPL, a detailed 

assessment of the scheme’s costs, benefits and impacts will be undertaken, 
including a full equality impact assessment.   
 

 

Sustainability Implications 

 
24. The introduction of a WPL, which the service to be delivered through this tender 

process will support and enable, will lead to higher levels of public transport and 

active travel use than would otherwise have been the case, leading to a 
reduction in car use, particularly for commuting to places of work in Oxford.  

Fewer car journeys will reduce traffic emissions, contributing to improved air 
quality and reducing the impact of emissions from transport on climate change. 
These are fully aligned with the Council’s strategic policies. 

 
25. As part of the business case required to support approval of a WPL, a detailed 

assessment of the scheme’s costs, benefits and impacts will be undertaken, 
including effects of a scheme on air quality, carbon and traffic and transport.   
 

Risk Management 

 

26. The principal risks associated with Workplace Parking Levy project: 

Page 5



   

 

   

 

  

 Scheme not approved by the DfT, or proposals require major changes 
following submission. 

 Lack of political support, or support changes following local elections. 

 Lack of stakeholder (business, employers) and public support. 

 Successful legal challenge. 

 
27. These risks can be mitigated by:  

 

 Compelling narrative and justification for a Workplace Parking Levy.  

 Ongoing engagement with local stakeholders and using feedback to help 
shape proposals (scheme definition and investment plan).  

 Ensure ongoing and timely input from the Department for Transport in 

terms of contents/scope of the business case and impact assessments.  

 

Consultations 

 
28. No public consultation is required or planned as part of this procurement.  

Proposals to introduce a WPL, including on the scheme definition (boundary, 
charges, exemptions etc), will be subject to a consultation, currently planned for 

summer 2025.  Before this, the Council will continue to engage with employers 
and businesses and others likely to be affected by the scheme, to allow them to 
help shape proposals. 

 
 
Paul Fermer 
Director of Environment and Highways  

 

 
Contact Officers: 

Hannah Battye, Head of Place Making (Hannah.Battye@oxfordshire.gov.uk)   
Stewart Wilson, Place Planning & Coordination Team Leader Central 
 

July 2024 

Page 6

mailto:Hannah.Battye@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Divisions Affected -  Isis, Jericho and Osney, University Parks 

  

  

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT  

  
20 JUNE 2024  

  

  

Oxford Zero Emission Zone Pilot Scheme - Income Sharing 
Agreement  

  

Report by Corporate Director of Environment and Place  
  

RECOMMENDATION  
  
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:   

  
a) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Environment and Place in 

consultation with the Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer and 

Section 151 Officer to negotiate, complete, sign, seal and implement the 
Income Sharing Agreement with Oxford City Council for the Oxford Zero 
Emission Zone Pilot Scheme.  

  

Executive Summary  
  

1. The Oxford Zero Emission Zone Pilot Scheme (the Scheme) has been 
introduced by Oxfordshire County Council and Oxford City Council acting in 

partnership. The two councils are the Parties to the Income Sharing Agreement 
that is the subject of this decision. The Income Sharing Agreement sets out the 

responsibilities and funding commitments of each Party with respect to costs 
incurred and income generated by the Scheme. It also specifies how the net 
income generated will be distributed between the Parties and the conditions 

imposed on the spending of such net income.  
  

Exempt Information  
 

2. The Income Sharing Agreement at Annex 1 and the scheme development and 
operating costs at Annex 2 are confidential due to inclusion of commercially 

sensitive cost information.  
  

Background  
  

3. The ZEZ Pilot scheme (the scheme) has been developed jointly by 

Oxfordshire County Council and Oxford City Council. It is a road user 
charging scheme and covers a small number of streets in Oxford city centre. It 

is intended to help improve air quality and reduce carbon emissions and also 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



to enable the county council to test how the scheme works before expanding 
the ZEZ to a wider area in Oxford in a potential future phase.   

  
4. The scheme was introduced in February 2022 and is the first phase of the 

ZEZ.    
  

5. Oxfordshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the introduction of the scheme on 

16th March 2021.  Oxford City Council’s Cabinet approved the introduction of 
the scheme on 10th March 2021. The reports to both of those Cabinet meetings 

noted that the city council will receive a share of net proceeds raised by the 
scheme in proportion to its contribution to the costs of implementing the ZEZ, 

assumed to be 50 per cent. The Transport Act 2000 requires that net proceeds 
generated by the scheme are used only for schemes that facilitate the 
achievement of local transport policies.  

  

6. The Pilot scheme is generating net proceeds after payment of costs.  

  
7. The income sharing agreement that is proposed for the scheme has been 

prepared by officers of the two authorities and is included at Annex 1.   
  

8. An analysis and forecast of the scheme’s costs and income up to 2026 is at 

Annex 2.  
  

9. The income sharing agreement (the Agreement) sets out the responsibilities 
and funding commitments of each Party with respect to the scheme. It also 
specifies how the income generated by the scheme may be offset against the 

costs incurred by each Party, how the resulting net income will be distributed, 
and the conditions imposed on the spending of such net income.   

  

10. The Agreement sets out that where sufficient net income raised by the 

scheme is available it will be used first to repay to each council their eligible 
costs, and that net income available after that will be shared equally by the 
councils.  

  

11. The Agreement requires that each council spends its share of the net income 

only on directly or indirectly facilitating the achievement of local transport 
policies contained in the County Council’s Local Transport Plan and/or in the 

City Council’s Local Plan. The County Council’s spend will be in accordance 
with the following high-level objectives:  

  

 supporting the delivery of the ambitions of the Pilot ZEZ Scheme in promoting 
cleaner air and tackling climate change;  

 

 supporting active travel and incentivising public transport use; and   

 

 supporting zero emission and sustainable infrastructure and actions in and 
around Oxford;  

  
and through the delivery of measures including but not limited to some or all of the 

following:   

Page 8



 

 Grants and/or financing for vehicle charging points and/or zero emission 

vehicles;   

 Electric car/van clubs;   

 Support for freight consolidation or transfer schemes, including use of cargo 
bike schemes;   

 Small scale public realm improvements and improved pedestrian areas;   

 Small scale walking and cycling schemes;   

 Funding to trial new ideas or ways of working (for example exemplar delivery & 
servicing plans);   

 Innovative ways of managing moving in and out days for students.  

  

12. In the unlikely event that eligible costs exceed income then such net eligible 
costs shall be borne equally by each party in equal proportions.  

  

13. The total income raised by the scheme over its first full financial year of 
operation (April 2022-March 2023) is £702,940. The scheme also raised a total 

of £25,432 in February and March 2022.  
  

14. The forecast total net income after repayment of eligible costs generated by 

the scheme until it ends (assumed to occur in the middle of the financial year 
26/27) is estimated to be approximately £1.77million.  

  
15. The Agreement will automatically cease when the scheme ends.  

  

Corporate Policies and Priorities  
  

16. Oxfordshire County Council’s Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) 
is our statutory Local Transport Plan, required under the Transport Act 2000. 
The ZEZ supports the vision in the LTCP to deliver a net-zero transport 

system that enables Oxfordshire to thrive, protects the environment and 
makes the county a better place to live for all residents. This includes 

ambitious targets to:  
 replace or remove 1 in 4 car trips in Oxfordshire by 2030  
 deliver a net-zero transport network by 2040, and  

 have zero, or as close as possible, road fatalities or life-
changing injuries by 2050.  

  
17. The Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan (COTP) has been developed as part of 

the (LTCP). The ZEZ is one of the COTP’s actions to build a more 

sustainable, reliable transport system.  
  

18. The Agreement will enable net income generated by the Scheme to be shared 
by the county and city councils to fund measures that support the aims and 
objectives of the LTCP and the COTP.  

  
19. The ZEZ has a significant role to play in supporting the county council’s Climate 

Action Framework and its commitment to be ‘net zero carbon’ in its operations 
by 2030.  

  

Page 9

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/connecting-oxfordshire/ltcp
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s66951/CMDTDS230907R04%20Annex%201%20-%20Central%20Oxfordshire%20Travel%20Plan%20Final%20Version.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf


20. The ZEZ supports the council’s Corporate Plan by helping people live healthier, 
safer lives and by protecting the local environment. It supports the council’s 

nine priorities and in particular those to:  
 put action to address the climate emergency at the heart of our 

work.  
 prioritise the health and wellbeing of residents.  
 invest in an inclusive, integrated and sustainable transport 

network.  
 work with local businesses and partners for environmental, 

economic and social benefit.  
 

Financial Implications  
  

21. It is estimated that the Scheme will generate net proceeds of approximately 

£1.77million up the middle of the 2026/27 financial year by when the scheme is 
likely to have been replaced by the wider ZEZ scheme, subject to consultation 
and Council Cabinet decision.   

  
22. The Agreement sets out how the eligible costs of each council and the net 

proceeds in connection with the Scheme will be determined, shared and on 
what they can be spent.  

  

23. The Agreement requires that if costs that are eligible for recovery from scheme 
income exceed gross scheme income in any year then the resulting net eligible 

costs shall be borne by each council in equal proportions.   
  

24. The proposed agreement does not limit the costs that the councils could be 

required to bear. However, the financial exposure of both councils would be very 
limited given that:   

 it is in both councils’ interests to ensure that the annual eligible 

costs of the scheme are minimised.  
 the proposed agreement includes a mutual indemnity against costs 

arising to either party as a result of the other’s failure to fulfil its 
functions lawfully or properly  

 the income raised by the Scheme’s during its first year of operation 

was substantially higher than its operating costs. Scheme income in 
subsequent years is also expected to substantially exceed operating 

costs.  

 A substantial number of vehicles used in the Scheme area are 
expected to be chargeable throughout the lifetime of the Scheme’s 

operation. This will enable the generation of Scheme income. 

Monitoring surveys undertaken in 2022 approximately nine months 
after the Scheme had launched identified a daily mean of 487 vehicle 

movements, excluding buses and taxis, in the zone during the 
Scheme’s operating hours. 62 of those movements (ie approximately 

13%) were made by zero emission vehicles.  

  
25. Costs associated with managing the Income Sharing Agreement will be 

eligible for recovery from income generated by the Scheme.  
  

Comments checked by:  

Page 10



  
Filipp Skiffins, Assistant Finance Business Partner, 

(Filipp.Skiffins@oxfordshire.gov.uk)   
  

  

Legal Implications  
  

26. The Scheme is a local charging scheme, introduced using powers available 
under the Transport Act 2000.   

  
27. The Scheme is given legal effect through a Road User Charging Order which 

requires that income it generates is first used to cover the costs of operation, 

including the maintenance of cameras, operational staff etc. Any surplus once 
these costs have been covered (“net proceeds”) may only be used for 

facilitating the achievement of local transport policies. The mandatory 
restrictions on spending the surplus are made binding contractual obligations 
in the Income Sharing Agreement.  

  
28. Each Council can terminate the Income Sharing Agreement on 6 months’ 

notice. However, bearing in mind the commitment of the Councils to cooperate 
for the purpose of the implementation and operation of the Pilot ZEZ Scheme it 
is anticipated that it shall not become necessary to terminate the Income 

Sharing Agreement before it would otherwise end.  
  

Comments checked by: Jonathan Pool, Solicitor (contracts) 
(Jonathan.Pool@oxfordshire.gov.uk)     
  

  

Staff Implications  
  

29. It is anticipated that the Income Sharing Agreement will be managed by staff 
from the Network Management team, supported where necessary by staff 

from other teams.   
  

30. Costs associated with managing the Income Sharing Agreement will be 
eligible for recovery from income generated by the Scheme without needing to 
draw on other financial resources.  

  

Equality & Inclusion Implications  
  

31. No direct implications in respect of equality and inclusion have been identified 

in respect of the Agreement itself. However, the Agreement will enable net 
income generated by the Scheme to be shared by the county and city councils 
to fund measures that will support equality and inclusion through the 

requirement that they contribute to delivering the aims and objectives of the 
LTCP and the COTP.   

  
32. The Scheme is anticipated to induce positive impacts on health and the 

environment. By reducing traffic volumes and vehicular emissions, 

Page 11

mailto:Filipp.Skiffins@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Pool@oxfordshire.gov.uk


encouraging sustainable modes of transportation the Scheme is expected to 
promote mental, physical, and general wellbeing.   

  
33. The Equality & Inclusion Implications of measures funded by the net proceeds 

of the Scheme would be subject to the council’s normal equality and inclusion 
assessments.  

  

Sustainability Implications  
  

34. No direct implications in respect of sustainability and climate impact have been 
identified in respect of the Agreement itself. However, the Agreement will 
enable net income generated by the Scheme to be shared by the county and 

city councils to fund measures that will support sustainability and climate impact 
through the requirement that they contribute to delivering the aims and 

objectives of the LTCP and the COTP.   
  

35. Measures funded by net proceeds shared through the Agreement will also 

support:  
 the county council’s Climate Action Framework.  

 the council’s Corporate Plan by helping people live healthier, 
safer lives and by protecting the local environment  
 the council’s priorities, in particular those to put action to address 

the climate emergency at the heart of our work; prioritise the health and 
wellbeing of residents; invest in an inclusive, integrated and sustainable 

transport network, and work with local businesses and partners for 
environmental, economic and social benefit.  

  

36. Climate Impact Assessments will be completed for measures to be funded by 
net proceeds from the Scheme.  

  

Risk Management  
  

37. There is a risk of reputational damage if the Agreement is not completed and 
implemented as that would prevent the sharing and spending of net proceeds to 

support measures in accordance with the requirements of the Scheme.   

  
38. The Agreement does not limit the costs that the councils could be required to 

bear. However, the financial risk for both councils would be very limited given 

that:   

 it is in both councils’ interests to ensure that the annual eligible 
costs of the scheme are minimised.  

 the proposed agreement includes a mutual indemnity against costs 

arising to either party as a result of the other’s failure to fulfil its 
functions lawfully or properly  

 the income raised by the Scheme’s during its first year of operation 
was substantially higher than its operating costs. Scheme income in 

subsequent years is also expected to substantially exceed operating 

costs.  
 A substantial number of vehicles used in the Scheme area are 

expected to be chargeable throughout the lifetime of the Scheme’s 

Page 12

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf


operation. This will enable the generation of Scheme income. 
Monitoring surveys undertaken in 2022 approximately nine months 

after the Scheme had launched identified a daily mean of 487 vehicle 

movements, excluding buses and taxis, in the zone during the 
Scheme’s operating hours. 62 of those movements (ie approximately 

13%) were made by zero emission vehicles.  

  
39. No other notable risks have been identified for the Agreement.  

 

Consultations  
  

40. The Scheme and the Agreement has been developed and agreed with Oxford 
City Council. 

  
41. The Agreement does not require public consultation.   

  

  
  
Bill Cotton  

Corporate Director Environment and Place   
  

  
Background papers: Nil  

   

  
Contact Officer: Bryan Evans  

Senior Transport Planner   
Environment and Place  

Tel: 07514 725194  

bryan.evans@oxfordshire.gov.uk   
May 2024  

  
Annex 1: Income Sharing Agreement (Confidential)  

Annex 2:   Shared Costs and Income Forecast  

 

Page 13

mailto:bryan.evans@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Oxford Workplace Parking Levy Scheme Development Contract
	5 Oxford Zero Emission Zone Pilot Scheme - Income Sharing Agreement
	CMDIDS20062024 - Annex 1 - Income Sharing Agreement (Confidential)
	CMDIDS20062024 - Annex 2 - Shared Costs and Income Forecasts (Confidential)


